
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 

Committee - LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTLOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP NERSHIP NERSHIP NERSHIP 

BOARDBOARDBOARDBOARD 

Date & Time - Thursday, 11th March, 2010 at 2.00 pm 

Venue - Anglia Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Dereham 

 
 

REPRESENTATIVE ORGANISATION 
Councillor William Nunn (Chairman) Breckland 
David Ovenden (Vice-Chairman) Dereham Area Partnership 
Mike Austin Norfolk Constabulary 
Debbie Bartlett Norfolk County Council 
Ian Clarke Eastern Daily Press 
Jonathan Clemo Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Tony Dickens Iceni Partnership, Swaffham 
Andrew Egerton-Smith Norfolk PCT 
Supt. Katie Elliott Norfolk Constabulary 
Mr Michael Eveling JP Probation Service 
Jan Godfrey Wayland Partnership 
Andrew Heginbotham Norfolk Fire Service 
Trevor Holden Breckland 
Brian Horner Voluntary Norfolk 
Valerie Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Shirley Matthews Norfolk Association of Local Councils 
John Rogers Norfolk County Council 
Dave Seaton Peddars Way Housing Association 
Neil Stott Keystone Development Trust 
Miss Cynthia Wake Norfolk Association of Local Councils 
Lucy Walker Learning Skills Council 
Caroline Williams Norfolk Chamber of Commerce 

 
Member Services     

Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Thursday, 4 March 2010  
 

Public Document Pack



LSP Board 
11 March 2010 

 
 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 8 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2010 .  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent 
business.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests they may have in 
any of the following items on the agenda.  
 

 

5. PERFORMANCE REPORTING   

a) Pride in Breckland Project 
 

  

 Report by Rob Walker, Director of Community Services.  
 

 

b) Thetford Health Town  

 Report by Tony Trotman, Programme Manager, Thetford Healthy 
Town.  
 

 

6. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT (LAA)   

 To receive a presentation from Daniel Harry, Norfolk County Council, LAA 
Lead.  
 

 

7. NHS NORFOLK 5 YEAR STRATEGY  9 - 33 

 Presentation by Clive Rennie, Assistant Director, Women and Children’s 
Commissioning NHS Norfolk. 
 

 

8. FUTURE JOBS FUND (FJF)  34 - 38 

 To receive a report from Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer.  
 

 

9. MIGRATION IMPACTS FUNDING (MIF)  39 - 46 

 To receive a report from Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer.  
 

 

10. PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB)  47 - 59 

 To receive a report from Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer.  
 

 

11. BUDGET   

 To receive an update on Partnership finances by Mark Fretwell, Partnership 
(LSP) Officer.  

 



LSP Board 
11 March 2010 

 

 

12. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   

 To agree items for inclusion on the next or a future agenda.  
 

 

13. FUTURE MEETINGS   

 To note that the next meeting of the LSP Board will be held on Wednesday, 
12 May 2010 at 2.00 pm in the Norfolk Room, Elizabeth House, Breckland 
Council.  
 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
 

Held on Thursday, 28 January 2010 at 2.00 pm in 
Anglia Room, The Committee Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Ms D. Bartlett Norfolk County Council 
Mr I. Clarke Eastern Daily Press 
J Clemo Norfolk Rural Community Council 
Mr T. Dickens Iceni Partnership, Swaffham 
Mr M.D. Eveling Probation Service 
Mr G. Hayes (In place of Mr D. Ovenden) Dereham Area Partnership (Substitute) 
Mr T. Holden Breckland 
Mrs V. Jenkins Norfolk Police Authority 
Mrs S. Matthews Norfolk Association of Local Councils 
Mr J. D. Rogers Norfolk County Council 
Ms D. Ross (In place of Mr N Stott) Keystone Development Trust 
Mr P. Wheatley (In place of Ms. K. Elliott) Norfolk Constabulary 

 
Also Present  
Mr R. Bishop 
Ms S. Jewkes 
Mr T. Trotman 

Town Clerk, Swaffham 
Audit Commission 
NHS Norfolk, Thetford Healthy Town 

 
In Attendance  
Mark Fretwell - LSP Officer 
Helen McAleer - Committee Officer 
Robert Walker - Director of Community Services 

 
 Action By 

Chairman  
 In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, Members 
agreed that Trevor Holden should assume the Chair. 
 

Trevor Holden in the Chair 

 

  
54/09 MINUTES   
  
 It was noted that Debbie Bartlett had not declared an interest in Agenda 

Item 10 and that her name should be replaced by Linda Rogers (who 
had declared an interest) on page 2 (Minute No 46/09) and page 5 
(Minute No 50/09) of the minutes. 
 
Subject to those alterations the minutes of the meeting held on 5 
November 2009 were confirmed as a correct record. 

 

  
55/09 MATTERS ARISING   
  
 There were no matters arising.  
  
56/09 APOLOGIES   
  
 Apologies for absence were received from William Nunn, David 

Ovenden, Katie Elliott, Jan Godfrey, Brian Horner, Dave Seaton and 
Neil Stott. 

 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 1

1



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action 
By 

 
  

57/09 URGENT BUSINESS   
  
 Two items of urgent business were accepted.  
  

 (a) Faith Representative    

   
 A request had been made to include a Faith representative on the 

Board.  The East of England Faiths Council, Bishop James Langstaff 
and Rev. Graham Thompson had nominated the Reverend Richard 
Lewis for the post and Partners were asked to approve his 
appointment. 
 
It was confirmed that the East of England Faiths Council was a multi-
faith organisation. 

 
RESOLVED to approve the appointment of the Reverend 
Richard Lewis as a full voting member of the Local Strategic 
Partnership Board. 

 

  

 (b) Future Jobs Fund    

   
 A report had been circulated to Partners informing them of the 

successful bid to the Future Jobs Fund.  News of this success had 
been received after the main agenda had been issued, hence the late 
report. 
 
Norfolk County Council had acted as lead partner in the bid which had 
included a portfolio of 19 jobs in Breckland (providing potential funding 
towards the associated costs of £123,500).  They would be organising 
a partnership day in February to provide an opportunity to meet other 
employers in the scheme as well as representatives from Connexions 
and members of Job Centre Plus who would be referring the 
candidates. 
 
It was noted that seven of the Breckland jobs were to be provided by 
private employers and these were thought to be the only successful 
private sector bids within the Norfolk application.  It was necessary to 
demonstrate the ‘wider community benefit’ of these posts. 
 
The scheme was aimed at improving the employability of long-term 
unemployed young people.  It would also contribute to the National 
Indicator ‘152’ (working age people on out of work benefits) and 
enhance workforce development and skills linked to Breckland’s 
Sustainable Community Strategy. 
 
There were currently 145 young people in Breckland that met the 
qualifying criteria.  With one in five under 25 year olds currently 
unemployed nationally, they are statistically the worst hit group. 
 
The Chairman congratulated the LSP (Partnership) Officer on a 
successful piece of work. 
 
The report was noted. 

 

2



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action 
By 

 
  
58/09 DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
  
 The following declarations of interest were received: 

 
Danielle Ross declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 8 (Migration 
Impacts Funding) as an employee of Keystone Development Trust. 
 
John Rogers declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 9 
(Participatory Budgeting) as four grants had been short-listed in his 
Ward. 
 
Shirley Matthews declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 10 
(Breckland Partnership Funding) as a Ward representative for 
Swaffham. 

 

  
59/09 PERFORMANCE REPORTING   
  

 (a) Pride in Breckland    

   
 Rob Walker, Breckland’s Director of Community Services, presented 

the report and told Partners that the Pride Project had gone from 
strength to strength under the stewardship of the Pride Co-ordinator, 
Richard Wills. 
 
There were a series of projects underway, the details of which were 
shown in the appendix to the report.  Projects had to address the 
goals of the Pride campaign and some early projects had failed to do 
that.  However, that issue had been addressed and all current and 
planned projects were performing well against the criteria. 
 
There was another year to run and it was intended to hold another 
Pride in Breckland awards ceremony in March 2011.  It was also 
hoped that some projects would be self-sustaining and would continue 
into the future.  If Partners had any issues they were asked to contact 
Richard Wills. 
 
The Chairman was very pleased with the project.  He said there had 
been a debate at GO East the previous week about the changes in 
funding streams and the increased demand for services.  Projects 
dealing with community cohesion were likely to take the lead with 
future funding constraints. 
 
The report was noted. 

 

  

 (b) Thetford Healthy Town    

   
 Tony Trotman, Programme Manager, was present to update the 

Board on the progress with the Thetford Healthy Town Programme. 
 
The Programme had been formally launched in September 2009 to 
the key stakeholders in Thetford and would run to March 2011.  There 
were 16 individual projects aimed at helping people to “eat well, move 
more and live longer”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

4 

 Action 
By 

 
 
A greater understanding of the health needs of those living and 
working in Thetford was sought and the same information was being 
gathered for the migrant communities.  
 
Future planning would have a healthy agenda and include green 
infrastructure and primary and secondary health care provision.  A 
high level of anticipation of health needs would be informed by a 
number of reports commissioned by the Healthy Urban Development 
Unit. 
 
Greater health interventions were encouraging people to participate in 
enjoyable activities like dance classes to improve their fitness and 
advice was being given on ways to cook and eat healthily on a 
budget. 
 
Local evaluators had been appointed to gather evidence on the 
effects of these initiatives.  A monthly newsletter was being sent out to 
all residents providing information and contact details to encourage 
engagement. 
 
A good start had been made and the early indications of take-up were 
pleasing. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Trotman for his update and asked that 
another report be presented to the next LSP Board showing that the 
projects were up and running and detailing support levels. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TT/MF  

  
60/09 COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA)   
  
 Sue Jewkes, from the Audit Commission, reminded Partners that she 

had given them a presentation on Comprehensive Area Assessment 
(CAA) over a year ago in the very early stages of the project. 
 
Since that time, the One Place website had been launched showing the 
data from the first year’s work.  The information would be regularly 
updated and would provide a baseline into year two. 
 
Eight local themes were reported against and a red and green flag 
system was used to highlight issues of particular significance. 
 
The Norfolk economy was generally doing quite well but wages were 
still very low particularly in rural areas leading to benefits being claimed 
by those in work. 
 
Skills and aspirations would be looked at in detail over the next 12 
months.  This was a priority in most areas and it was not known if 
sufficient was being done to improve skill levels. 
 
Housing was another area that would be looked at in the future, 
including the lack of affordable housing and the problem of empty 
homes.  Councils needed to use their powers to bring empty properties 
back into use. 
 

 

4



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

5 

 Action 
By 

 
“Your Norfolk, Your Decision” had been awarded a Green Flag for its 
unique combination of agency and stakeholder buy-in.  It would be 
interesting to see if this would work at a more local level. 
 
There were good plans in place to try to encourage stronger 
communities and those promoting diversity and equality needed to work 
hard to overcome their fear of doing the wrong thing. 
 
There were a number of projects trying to address the fear of crime 
including restorative justice which, with more evidence, might warrant a 
Green Flag. 
 
The health inequalities in different parts of the district were highlighted 
and the need to ensure that the work being done was ‘joined up’.  Good 
communication would lead to an improved and more effective service.   
 
In conclusion Sue encouraged the LSP to read the report and visit the 
website to see what others were doing.  She said that the work of the 
LSP was a powerful resource which could really make a difference. 
 
The Chairman thanked Sue for her presentation. 

  
61/09 MIGRATION IMPACTS FUNDING (MIF)   
  
 Danielle Ross declared a personal interest in this item. 

 
Mark Fretwell updated Partners on the progress made in delivering the 
project and of the future activities that were planned.  He sought 
approval to recruit three Service Connector staff to work at the META 
one stop shop in Thetford (two days a week) and on the mobile bus 
(three days a week). 
 
Work was on-going to work out the leasing and marketing arrangements 
for the mobile bus.  A demonstration on connectivity had been arranged 
by a highly recommended supplier and if it provided value for money 
this would be taken forward.  The bus was on track to commence 
operation at the start of the new financial year. 
 
The contract had been signed for the One Stop Shop and the budgeting 
was in place.  The additional £30,000 available for year two had been 
approved by GO East, subject to satisfactory delivery against year one; 
and currently looked likely to be approved. 
 
The Chairman encouraged Partners to look at the Service Canada 
(http://www.servicecanada.gc.ca/eng/about/index.shtml) which focussed 
on front end delivery and staff were able to advise on a range of 
services.  He said that this was a good way of breaking down 
organisational barriers and delivering services. 
 
A Partner asked where the bus would go and how residents would be 
notified of its route and timetable. 
 
Mark Fretwell explained that he was looking at all the available data to 
determine where the service should be targeted.  The market towns and 

 

5



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

6 

 Action 
By 

 
villages identified as Local Service Centres would be included, along 
with schools and workplaces. 
 
Many other agencies had expressed an interest and it was hoped that 
the bus could tie-in with existing initiatives organised by NHS Norfolk, 
the Police and the Job Centres among others. 
 
Rob Walker agreed that the route would need to be well publicised, but 
an element of flexibility was required to allow response to specific 
issues in particular areas.  A balance would therefore need to be struck. 
 
The Chairman noted that some services were being retracted due to 
reduced footfall in the market towns, which made the cost of one-to-one 
availability too high.  The One Stop Shop, manned by multi-skilled staff, 
could deliver or signpost the whole range of services, sharing the 
transaction cost between participating agencies. 
 
The whole project was timetabled to be up-and-running by the start of 
the next financial year. 
 

RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) note the contents of the report; 
(2) approve the recruitment to three posts (hosted and 

managed by Breckland Council) consisting of a Service 
Connector manager and two Service Connector officers; 

(3) endorse the META service contract for the provision of a 
One Stop Shop in Thetford located at ‘The Limes’, 32 
Bridge Street, Thetford; and 

(4) consider Partners’ commitment to the Migration Impact 
Funding project. 

  
62/09 PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB)   
  
 John Rogers declared a personal interest in this item as four of the 

grant applications were from within his Ward. 
 
Mark Fretwell updated Partners on the actions to date and the planned 
delivery of the Participatory Budgeting project and its evaluation. 
 
Community panels had been set up in each of the five market towns 
and rural hinterland areas.  The members of the panel had been given 
an induction to Participatory Budgeting and they would be assessing 
applications for grants during February.  There had been some delay to 
this project due to the adverse weather conditions. 
 
21 funding applications had been made to the Youth Council, (totalling 
£74,565) 12 of which had been shortlisted.  A decision would be made 
on the successful applicants on 28 January 2010 when the Youth 
Council would make the decisions following presentations by the young 
people .  The results would be announced at the end of that event. 
 
Evaluation to ensure that all projects were delivering the proposed 
outcomes would take place at six and twelve month intervals. 

 

6



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

7 

 Action 
By 

 
 
The Chairman commented that the Youth Council was really coming of 
age. 
 

RESOLVED to 
 
(1) note the contents of the report; 
(2) receive a report at the LSP Board meeting on 11 March 

2010 detailing the projects that had been awarded 
funding through the Youth Council and Area Based 
Participatory Budgeting events; and 

(3) invite the Breckland Youth Council members to present a 
report/presentation to the next Board meeting on 11 
March 2010 regarding their Participatory Budgeting 
event. 

  
63/09 BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP FUNDING   
  
 Shirley Matthews declared a personal interest in this item as Ward 

representative for Swaffham. 
 
Mark Fretwell updated Partners on the previously completed project 
funding round and the potential future funding round in 2010/11. 
 
Five projects were awarded funding at the LSP Board meeting held on 
10 September 2009, and two further projects were provisionally 
allocated funding subject to further information being provided in 
relation to questions raised at the meeting. 
 
The Norfolk Climate Change Partnership had not progressed its bid and 
the provisional funding allocation had been withdrawn. 
 
The Swaffham Market Traditions project had provided the additional 
information and Richard Bishop, Swaffham Town Council Clerk was in 
attendance to support their bid. 
 
Mr Bishop explained that the market was central to the town’s 
development.  It was important for traders, visitors and residents alike.  
The project aimed to bring the market into line with other activities in the 
town such as the Iceni indoor market and the antiques fairs held at the 
Ecotech Centre.  The idea was to co-ordinate these activities and to 
employ someone for six months to invest the time, money and 
resources into attracting more traders and people to the market. 
 
Tony Dickens said they were really enthusiastic about the project which 
had terrific potential.  The indoor market which they ran was very 
successful and over-subscribed.  He commended the project to 
Partners. 
 

RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) note the contents of the report; 
(2) award £10,500 to the Swaffham’s market traditions 

project; 

 

7



Local Strategic Partnership Board 
28 January 2010 

 
 

8 

 Action 
By 

 
(3) withdraw the provisional funding for the Climate Change 

Partnership project due to lack of interest from the 
stakeholders; 

(4) await the decision on Second Homes Council Tax from 
Norfolk County Council before deciding whether to enter 
a further round of project funding targeted at the 
voluntary sector; and 

(5) request that the five previously funded projects submit a 
report in relation to the planning, delivery and future 
activities of those projects, for inclusion at the next LSP 
Board meeting on 11 March 2010. 

  
  
64/09 BUDGET   
  
 Mark Fretwell advised Members that following the allocation of £10,500 

funding at the meeting there was circa £60,000 available in the budget. 
 
Information on the Second Homes Council Tax allocation was expected 
on about 15 February 2010. 
 
The Chairman asked if that money was at risk and Debbie Bartlett 
advised that a significant issue was the proposed change to the use of 
the money retained by the County Strategic Partnership.  Currently that 
money was divided and made available for bids by district LSPs but in 
future it could potentially be used to provide an infrastructure fund for 
the whole County. 

 

  
65/09 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS   
  
 Partners were advised that there would be a presentation from Daniel 

Harry (Norfolk County Council) on the Local Area Agreement refresh 
and NHS Norfolk on their restructure and engagement with LSPs. 

 

  
66/09 FUTURE MEETINGS   
  
 It was noted that the next meeting of the LSP Board would be held on 

Thursday 11 March 2010, at 2.00pm in the Norfolk Room, Conference 
Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham. 
  

 

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.30 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

8



A
g
e

n
d
a

 Ite
m

 7

9



About Norfolk

1
0



But……

We also have:

1
1



NHS Norfolk’s Ambition

‘Excellent Health, Outstanding Care and

Best Value for the people of Norfolk through

the development of NHS Norfolk  as a world

class commissioning organisation that has

visible clinical leadership, a passion for

excellence and the patient voice at the heart

of all of it’s activity’

1
2



About NHS Norfolk

l We buy health services for the people of 
Norfolk, excluding Great Yarmouth.

l We have developed with local people and 
our partners, a ‘bold and ambitious’ plan to 
address these health issues and improve 
health outcomes.

l Our Strategic Plan will help us achieve our 
vision of: excellent health, outstanding care 
and best value.

1
3



Services in Norfolk

In the NHS Norfolk area there are 750,000 people and 

these are some of the services we buy:

• Hospital services

• Community services such as district nursing

• Mental health services

• Ambulance services

• 92 GP practices with over 500 GPs

• 134 dental practices

• 117 pharmacies 

1
4



Norfolk facts and statistics

1
5



The Strategic Challenges we 

face in Norfolk

To enable fair and equal access to all 

services for all communities; especially 

for those living in rural areas

To shift high quality care closer to home 

from acute to community settings

Focus areas

1. 

Lifestyle and 

Prevention

2.

Personalisation, 

independence and 

choice

3.

Right care,    

Right time,     

Right place

To halt and reverse the increasing gap in 

health inequalities across specific health 

issues and communities

To design and commission world class 

healthcare services for the elderly and 

ageing population

1
6



What we are going to do about it

We have begun the journey towards

personalised, prevention-focused and

community-based health care.

We have been bold and ambitious in setting our

agenda, and are confident we will substantially improve

the health of our population and deliver world class,

high quality health and healthcare for the people of

Norfolk.

1
7



Lifestyle and prevention

1
8



Lifestyle and prevention

We want to help local people live longer and 

healthier lives and so we are investing 

£20million over the next five years on 

initiatives to prevent cancer, heart disease, 

diabetes and respiratory diseases, such as 

asthma.

1
9



Personalisation, 
independence and choice

2
0



Personalisation, 
independence and choice

We want to help local people make personal 

choices about their care and so we are 

investing £40 million over the next five years 

on developing a wider range of services which 

will help them stay independent and give them 

choice.

2
1



Right care, right time, right place

2
2



Right care, right time, right place

We want fair and equal access to services for 

everyone and so we are investing £20 million 

over the next five years on making sure local 

people get the right care, at the right time with 

services closer to where they live.

2
3



How will we afford it?

l No additional money from 2011/12

l Increasing and older population

l New drugs and treatments

l More demand for specialist services

2
4



How will we afford it?

So….

• We need to make sure we spend our £1.3 
billion budget on services that provide 
outstanding care for the best value

• This will mean being innovative and finding 
new ways of working and making changes to 
existing services

• We need to make sure there is more care in 
the community with less need to travel to 
hospitals

2
5



NHS Norfolk Model Development
Capgemini Consulting

Strategic Vision

Current System 2014 System

Investment in Lifestyle & Prevention

Health inequalities reduction
Investment in Lifestyle & Prevention

Health inequalities reduction

Acute/hospital setting

In hospital care

Primary care 

setting

Community 

care setting

Acute/hospital setting

In hospital care

Primary 

Care 

setting

Community

care setting

Increased 

investment

£ 17m 

(1.7%)

Reduced 

baseline spend

£30m (3%)

Increased spend  £22m 

(2.2%)

Potential 

increase in 

acute 

specialised 

services

Efficiencies & 

disinvestment 

across the 

system

ICO

Activity shift

Strategic vision

2
6



Tiers of Service Provision

Dereham,

Thetford, Fakenham

Wymondham, 

Downham Market, Aylsham, 

Swaffham, Fakenham, Attleborough

93 GP led practices across Norfolk 

(list size ranging from 1,800 to 24,000) 

128 Dental providers (approx 1,200 UDA)

Norwich

Kings  

Lynn,

Service Delivery Tier Location Services

Acute setting

Enhanced Community

setting

Primary Care + setting

Primary 

Care (GP 

& GDP)

G
P
 &
 G
D
P

N
u
rs
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ra
p
ie
s
, 
m
in
o
r 
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t

U
rg
e
n
t 
c
a
re
, 
d
a
y
 c
a
s
e
s
, 

o
u
tp
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 
o
s
c
o
p
ie
s

S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

A
&
E

S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
d
ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
s

Tiers of service provision

2
7



What will be different in 
2014 for people in Norfolk?

2
8



5 year strategy assumptions

l Key investments in 2009/10
– Stroke

– IAPT

– Maternity and children’s services

l Underpinned by challenging assumptions 
regarding acute growth e.g. 1% growth

l Likely scenario is no new growth from 10/11

l Identified need for £30million recurrent 
savings by 11/12

2
9



What’s happening this year?

l Significant growth in acute activity this year 

5% increase

l Continued growth in costs of continuing care

l Other pressures e.g. ambulance activity 

increases and high cost drugs

l Potentially a £17million problem by year end

3
0



What are we going to do about it?

l We have recovery processes in hand built 

upon: 

– Benchmarking information

– Local utilisation review work

– Acute invoice validation 

l Strong programme board team effort to date

l Need to drive good ideas to delivery

l Supports our strategic plan

3
1



Looking further ahead

l Potentially less funds after the election e.g. 

another 2% less

l The planning starts here and now to deliver 

on being bold and ambitious

l A health system approach needed and we 

need to be world class commissioners

l Quality, Innovation, Productivity and 

Prevention (QUIPP) a key driver but unlikely 

to be the complete answer

3
2



Your questions

3
3



 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

11 March 2010 
 

Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer, Breckland Council 
 

Future Jobs Fund (FJF) 
 

1.    Purpose of Report 

         To inform LSP Board Members on the proposed delivery for the ‘Future Jobs Fund’ to 
which a successful bid for ‘19 jobs’ within Breckland was submitted. 

 

 

2.      Recommendations 
 
           It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
  2.1.1 Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 
 

 

3.1     Background 

3.1.1 The ‘Future Jobs Fund’ is a fund of around £1 Billion to support the creation of 
150,000 jobs between October 2009 and April 2011. It is for long term unemployed 
young people and others who face significant disadvantage in the labour market. 

 
3.1.2 The funding is to be spent over the next two years. The fund is being run by the   

Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in partnership with the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (CLG). 

 
3.1.3 Norfolk County Council who acted as the lead partner were successful in the second 

round bid to create a further 331 jobs in Norfolk. 
 
3.1.4 The Breckland Partnership submitted a portfolio of jobs to the Investing in 

Communities Partnership Board and these positions were successful as part of the 
wider Norfolk County Council bid. 

 
3.2     Issues 
 

3.2.1 A partnership day organised by Norfolk County Council took place on February 25th 
and was held at Norwich City Football club to provide an opportunity to meet other 
employers in the scheme and other key partners.  

 
3.2.2 I attended the day on behalf of the Breckland Partnership and in order to support the 

Breckland ‘private’ employers through the Future Jobs Fund process. 
 
3.2.3 Norfolk County Council set the scene in terms of providing details on the round 1 bid 

which was ongoing and was proving to work successfully with only circa 20 persons 
to date leaving the 315 positions that had been filled. 

 
3.2.4 There are currently 1,405 people in Norfolk who fit the Future Jobs Fund criteria. 
 
3.2.5 Job Centre Plus talked through the referrals process in terms of what can be 

expected, as well as which approaches have proved most successful in terms of 
placing young people as quickly as possible. There are on average 8 referrals to 
each of the positions currently available. 

 
3.2.6 Advice and guidance on the most effective way to ensure the jobs are filled quickly 

was provided in the document ‘dos and don’ts’ (as provided in appendix).  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

34



 
 
 
 
 
3.2.7 Connexions talked through how they can help with the referrals process and assist 

with the engagement of young people during the Future Jobs Fund process. 
 
3.2.8 The arrangements for filling the position are as follows; A stencil (a blank copy as 

provided in appendix) is completed by the employer which provides details on the 
employer, the vacancy, duties, skills, equipment, and training and shows how to 
apply for the job. 

 
3.2.9 The stencil is provided to Norfolk County Council to record the details and they pass 

it to Job Centre Plus who will action it by promoting it at their centres and place it on 
the recruitment system within 24 hours. 

 
3.2.10 A member of the Job Centre Plus central team will contact the employer within 5   

days of receiving the stencil to discuss the position and to answer any questions.  
 
3.2.11 The ambition is to fill the position within 4 weeks. If a person leaves before 

completion of the 6 months then the process starts again and a new 6 month 
contract is entered into with another candidate. 

 
3.2.12 Payments will be made to the employer as follows; £300 on offer and acceptance 

with confirmation by Job Centre Plus, £1050 at the candidate start date, £1050 at 
month 3 if there is continuous attendance by the employee and the salary will be 
paid monthly in arrears upon completion of a monitoring and claims form submitted 
to Norfolk County Council at the end of each month. 

 

3.3      Options 

 3.3.1   To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 

3.3.2  To continue to support the employers as required throughout the Future Jobs Fund 
scheme.  

3.3.3  To continue to act as the link between Norfolk County Council, Breckland employers 
and Job Centre Plus. 

3.3.4  To continue to co-ordinate the delivery, promotion and the publicity in respect of the 
Breckland bid and report into the Breckland Partnership as required. 

3.4     Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 3.4.1   The Future Jobs Fund offers an opportunity to:  

• Improve the employability of long-term unemployed people.   

• Deliver socially useful work that otherwise would not be done. 

• Contributing to the National Indicator ‘152. (Working Age people on out of work 
benefits). 

• Enhance workforce development and skills linked to the Sustainable Community 
Strategy priority of ‘Thriving Economy.’  

 
3.4.2 The successful bid will allow an opportunity for young people to gain valuable work 

experience and skills in the district and to leave the individuals better placed to find 
permanent employment.  

 
3.4.3 The Future Jobs Fund gives the Breckland Partnership an opportunity to support 

young people in the district who are in a disadvantageous position in obtaining work 
or work experience in the current economic climate. 

 
3.4.4 With 1 in 5 under 25 year’s young people currently unemployed they statistically are 

the worst hit group. 
 

35



 
Future Jobs Fund How To…   fill jobs quickly 

For further guidance on the FJF website: http://research.dwp.gov.uk/campaigns/futurejobsfund/ 

 
We want to create good-quality jobs and to fill them with the right people as quickly 
as possible.  This document highlights some of what providers and Jobcentre Plus 
tells us works, and some of what doesn’t, when filling Future Jobs Fund vacancies. 

 
Dos 
 
• Remove all steps in the recruitment process which are not essential or a legal 

requirement.  Do not use intermediaries if you do not need to, don’t ask for experience 
unless it is essential, and… 

 
• Evidence shows that using application forms will halve the number of job applications 

that you get.  If you must use them, keep them straightforward - e.g. use the JCP 
application form. 

 
• Ask Jobcentre Plus to check your job specifications to ensure they are ‘FJF friendly’. 

 
• Use the Jobcentre Plus Future Jobs Fund vacancy template when placing vacancies.  

This will avoid delays, ensuring all the information Jobcentre Plus needs is provided 
first time. 
 

• Plan ahead – notify vacancies at least 4 weeks before you want the job to start. 
 

• Block out the time for interviews and tell Jobcentre Plus – that way, they can book the 
interviews at the same time they make the referral – this can be very effective in 
making sure referrals lead to applications (and speeding up the process). 
 

• Keep in touch – if you’re not getting referrals within five working days then raise this 
with your Jobcentre Plus point of contact.  If you’re not getting applications within 10 
working days then discuss it. 
 

• If possible, consider increasing the hours of the FJF job to 30 hours per week (or 
more). This can make the job more attractive to customers as other ‘in-work’ benefits 
may become available.  

 
Don’ts 
 
MOST IMPORTANT: Do not include a requirement for qualifications, experience or 

CRB checks unless a legal requirement for the post.  
 
• Avoid acronyms in an advert and any language which is difficult to understand. 

 
• Do not accept any referrals which are not certified by JCP - if you employ somebody 

who is ineligible then this will breach your terms and conditions and we will not pay 
you for that job. 

36



Employer details 

Name of Organisation: Title of your organisation to appear on JCP system 

Telephone number including STD 
code: xxxxxx 

Fax number including STD code:  if 
applicable             

Contact name: xxxx 

Position: xxxx 

Address: xxx 

Tel no. & ext: xxxxx 

Postcode: xxxx Email address: xxxx 

No. of employees: xxx Disability Symbol user? Yes/No 

Employer Record Number for JCP 
use 

Type of business: xxxx 

About the vacancy 

Job title: xxxxxxx No. of people required: x 

Wage details: weekly or hourly 
rate must meet minimum wage 

Actual days and hours to be worked: 
minimum 25 hours 

Temporary / Permanent 

All temporary? 

Duration, if temporary? 6 
months 

Save to partial? Yes/No JCP use 

If yes, reason. 

Duties: 

Exactly what the job involves. 

Essential skills, experience and 
qualifications required for the 
job. 

Desirable skills, experience 
and qualifications. 

Equipment that will be used. 

Any available training. 

  Maximum of 900 characters including 
spaces 

How does the employer wish 
people to apply for the job? 

Applicant to ring employer 

Jobcentre to ring employer 

CV and Letter back to employer 

Jobcentre application form back to employer 

Employer application form back to employer 

37



Applicant/Jobcentre to ring employer to book 
an interview Other – please specify 

Employer to decide 

Closing date for applications:  

 

38



 
 

BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 
 

11 March 2010 
 

Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer, Breckland Council 
 

MIGRATION IMPACT FUNDING (MIF) 
 

1.  Purpose of Report 

1.1.1 To update LSP Board Members on the progress in delivering the Migration Impact 
Funding project and the planned future activities. 

 
1.1.2 To seek approval for funding a satellite, its installation, airtime and the support of 

satellite connectivity for the mobile service on a 12 month contract. 
 
1.1.3 To seek partner commitment to deliver a piece of scoping work linked to the 

integration of migrant workers in Thetford, using arts as the  tool for engagement.  
 

 

 2.     Recommendations 
 
           It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
2.1.1 Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 
 
2.1.2 To approve the funding of a transportable satellite solution and to cover the satellite 

cost including one year of airtime and annual support and maintenance (at a cost of 
circa £20,000). 
 

2.1.3 To approve the funding of the scoping work linked to migrant workers using arts as 
the engagement mechanism (at a cost of £9,350). (see attached report) 

 
2.1.4 To consider partner’s commitment to the Migration Impact Funding project. 

 
2.1.5 To explore the delivery options for project delivery in year 2 at the following Board 

meeting on May 12th post the decision from GO East and the commencement of the 
one stop shop and mobile service in April. 

 

 

3.1     Background 

 3.1.1   A successful application as previously disseminated and discussed was made to Go 
East and Communities and Local Government (CLG) and £220,000 was awarded in 
the first year (09/10). 

 
3.1.2   It was resolved at the previous Board meeting to: 

(1) support the Mobile Bus option for delivering services (advice, information, 
guidance, support) and offering a learning environment across the district that is 
linked in with other events (coffee mornings) or delivery (mobile library).  With the 
provision to link in with existing community provision including village halls and 
community centres; 

(2) support the provision of a One Stop Shop in Thetford, to be located at ‘The 
Limes’; 

 
3.1.3    Funding has been approved to deliver the second year of projects under the 

Migration   Impacts Fund. The £30,000 allocation to The Breckland Partnership in 
year 2 is   subject to GO-East being satisfied that the project has delivered against 
the work  proposed for 2009/10. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

39



 
 
 
 
3.2 Issues 
 
Recruitment: 
 
3.2.1 A job evaluation panel took place at Breckland Council to review the salaries and the 

posts on the18th February, the panel agreed with the grading and to recruit. 
 
3.2.2 The three ‘Service Connector’ posts will be advertised internally for 5 days, followed   

by externally for 10 days if suitable candidates are not available. 
 
3.2.3 Dependent on who is successful in taking up the posts will determine their start date 

due to the take up of references, notice period, CRB checks etc. 
 
META Service: 
 
3.2.4  The contract of service has signed between Breckland Council and Keystone 

Development Trust on behalf of the Breckland Partnership for the delivery of an 
expanded META service to cover an additional two days per week. 

 
3.2.5   The META service will be linking up with other partner agencies and will offer a 

broader range of services using a one stop shop model for delivery.  
 
3.2.6 Keystone Development Trust has provided two META staff, a receptionist and the 

office space and management of these resources on an additional two days a week. 
 
3.2.7 Breckland Council are employing the service connector staff, however the one stop 

shop service to be provided will deliver services beyond Breckland’s and it aims to 
deliver partner’s wider services in an innovative manner. 

 
Mobile Provision: 
 
3.2.8 The understanding of previous and current projects where the learning of the positive 

and negative aspects can be used in the delivery of the mobile provision. Such as the 
Connecting Communities, Services 2Gether, mobile libraries, housing outreach 
project and fruit deliveries are being utilised to provide an effective delivery method. 
 

3.2.9 Research to provide the most appropriate connectivity have resulted in satellite as 
the preferred option. Therefore three competitive quotes have been obtained by 
suppliers. 

 
3.2.10 Discussions and planning are well underway in terms of the mobile provision, 

including the connectivity options, planning routes, branding & marketing, service 
provision and the leasing arrangements. 
 

3.2.11 The mobile vehicle will be neutral in colour with appropriate branding to reflect the 
partner involvement to include the Breckland Partnership, Breckland Council and 
LSC for example. 
 

Budget / Year 2: 
 

3.2.12 The estimated budget for the three service connector staff (£94,050), the additional 
META one stop shop (£43,922) and the mobile service provision (£35,000). This 
shows a current total of £172.972 of a currently available £220,000. 

 
3.2.13 If the proposed funding (satellite and arts scoping) is agreed the allocated spending 

would be £203,322 of a currently available £220,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



 
 
 
 
 

3.2.13 There will need to be contingency funds available for the project. However, decisions 
will need to be taken on future project spending on the supporting projects proposed 
(training & skills, communication and community engagement) which in part will be 
influenced subject to year 2 funding. 

 
3.2.14 I attended a meeting with GO East and other Norfolk MIF project leads on the 19th 

January. It was to share progress reports, key outcomes identified, risks identified, 
and to look at opportunities for partnership working. 

 
3.2.15 There are no formal reporting processes for the funding. However, an evaluation 

template is to be completed and returned to GO-East to demonstrate progress 
against outcomes and outputs. 

 
3.3       Options 
 
3.3.1 To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 

 
3.3.2 To approve / not approve the funding of a transportable satellite solution and to cover 

one year of airtime and the annual support and maintenance.  
 
3.3.3 To approve / not approve the funding of the scoping work linked to migrant workers 

using arts as the engagement mechanism 
 
3.3.4 To consider wider partner commitments to the Migration Impact Funding project.  
 
3.3.5 To bring a report in respect of year 2 funding available and project delivery to the 

following Board meeting on 12th May. 
 

3.4       Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 
3.4.1 The satellite solution offers the best form of connectivity currently available in order 

that we can access the internet whilst delivering services to the rural communities. 
 
3.4.2 The satellite offers a tangible product that can be utilised beyond the life of the 

project, to secure further funding or continue the mobile one stop shop project if it is 
deemed successful. 

 
3.4.3 The satellite will offer an innovative solution that will offer significant branding and 

marketing potential within the County and beyond. 
 
3.4.4 The delivery of the scoping project will allow us to better understand the needs of 

migrant communities and therefore how to better integrate them into local 
communities and ensure they access the services on offer. 

 
3.4.5   The scoping work will identify opportunities for integration between individuals and 

communities in Thetford. This will provide evidence of need, to deliver specific 
project work and a case to secure further funding.   

 
 
 
 

41



 
 

Scoping Proposal – Integration of Migrant Workers 
 
Purpose of the report 
 
The purpose of the report is to outline a proposal for scoping work linked to the 
integration of migrant workers in Thetford, with the use of arts as a tool for 
engagement. 
 
Context and Issues  
 
Research published by the Keystone Trust, Workers on the move 2, and an interim 
report Longitudinal study of migrant workers in the East of England by Anglia Ruskin 
University highlights the key health issues faced by migrant workers living and 
integrating into UK society. Although these reports indicate that the health needs, 
concerns and issues of migrant workers are not yet well understood there are a 
number of common themes that emerge that they face that include isolation, 
language barriers and a lack of opportunities for socialising with other migrants and 
host communities, improving or learning English and using or improving existing 
skills.  
 
A literature review from the Longitudinal study of migrant workers in the East of 
England by Anglia Ruskin University concludes some key findings;  

• ‘Common sense understandings’ of migration (and the different statuses and 
entitlements involved) are often misinformed.  

• Migrant workers cluster together in order to maximise the benefits of informal 
social networks, to access employment or accommodation, or to enjoy 
solidarity as a means to counter their experiences of isolation. Self 
segregation is a problem that needs to be solved.  

• There is no comprehensive policy framework to support the integration of 
migrants, leaving the individual responsible for this, with support from 
selective services and voluntary groups.  

 
The research detailed in this report finds that:  

• limited English had an impact on the degree of stress when migrating to a 
new country.  

• Both open and long-stay interviewees expressed a desire to feel a greater 
sense of community, or connection to the local community. There appear to 
be more opportunities to develop community links for migrants with children.  

• Migrant workers are ambitious and seek personal development and 
advancement, ‘making money quickly’ is not their chief concern. 

• Limited interaction with native English speakers was regretted and language 
skills were a factor in this. 

 
Breckland and Thetford welcome migrant workers who stay in the area for short and 
longer periods of time. Their needs and interests may differ but the importance of 
tackling isolation and encouraging good relations between them and host 
communities is as important.  
 
Those who have established themselves more long term in the area may well be 
community leaders or have more confidence, local knowledge and language skills 
which will enable them to get more involved in their local community but the support 
and opportunities for this engagement may not be available. 
The scoping work will look at how the arts can be used to integrate communities, 
therefore reducing social stress and isolation and increasing dialogue and good 
relations between groups and individuals from host communities and migrant 
workers.   
 

42



This scoping project will aim to explore the needs, interests and skills that exist 
between those staying short and long term and to see what support and opportunities 
would enable this sector of the community getting involved. This project will see the 
skills and interests that exist within this sector of the community as a potential benefit 
to the host community that could enhance the arts and community activity of 
Thetford.  
 
The arts provide a safe and creative space to explore and respond to issues such as 
integration. Arts activities and events can be planned and delivered by and for people 
with differing languages and skills and backgrounds. 
 
The arts scene in Thetford provides a dynamic and positive forum in which to explore 
opportunities for integration. Thetford’s arts venues and groups are established and 
could be in a position to respond to and involve the changing community they serve.   
This scoping project will explore the potential for involving members of these new 
communities to get involved in and influence the planning and delivery of their 
activities and events. 
 
It is recommended that the scoping work is carried out by an external representative 
rather than an existing organisation or authority, where there may already be 
preconceptions – such as Breckland Council or META. The external consultant 
should have experience of community engagement, work with hard to reach groups 
and have an understanding of arts engagement.    
 
Proposal 
The research will identify how the arts can be used to integrate communities, 
therefore reducing social stress and isolation and increasing dialogue and good 
community relations between groups and individuals.   
 
Research will be carried out on existing local arts organisations and Museums and 
groups to identify potential volunteer opportunities, opportunities to host social and 
arts events or influence existing arts programmes, as well as other ways to involve 
and integrate newcomers to Thetford.  
 
Informal consultation will be carried out through social gatherings and Community 
Café events, local cafes, churches, and community meetings to find out how 
individuals feel they could and would like to integrate into the community.  
 
These consultations and meetings will also identify who within these communities are 
interested in getting more involved in local arts and community activities.  
Work with partners such as META and representatives from Housing, the Police and 
the Health Service will also identify individuals to engage with and to explore 
potential joined up working.   
 
The findings will be documented in a creative format through film, as well as through 
diaries. Findings will be presented in a final report, as well as a short film.  There is 
also an opportunity for arts and community events to be organised in Thetford to 
present the findings, encourage community ‘buy in’ into projects that encourage 
integration and to explore with partners and arts organisations can learn from the 
scoping project, and reflect the findings in their future work, as well as plan the next 
steps that act on the project’s findings.   
 
Milestones 
 
Stage 1: Research and Exploration 
 
Migrant Worker Communities 
- Research and meet support agencies and networks working with migrant workers in 
Thetford 

43



- Research and meet existing migrant workers’ groups and activities eg community 
café, church or learning groups  
- Identify community leaders or those looking for opportunities from migrant 
communities 
 
Explore: 

• what skills and interests these individuals and groups have 

• what existing arts/ community activities take place within the migrant workers’ 
communities that could be showcased or shared with the host community 

• what activities/ events in Thetford they engage in or are aware of,  

• the barriers to integration or engaging in arts and community activities in 
Thetford 

• opportunities they are looking for to build on or learn new skills.  
 
Thetford’s arts groups and venues 
 
Research and meet existing arts organisations, groups, and venues and activities in 
Thetford. 
 
Explore:  

• What activities and events are already planned in Thetford – successes and 
gaps  

• Look at promotion and publicity 

• Look at attendance numbers – who doesn’t/ attend 

• Explore with groups and venues their skills shortages, volunteer 
opportunities, how new members can join 

• Look at programming – opportunities for new groups/ activities/ events to be 
planned 

 
Stage 2: Responding to the findings 
 
Partnership working 
Enable dialogue between migrant and host community arts groups / organisations etc 
 
Explore  

• The format and content of initial meetings and discussions to ensure 
engagement and meaningful discussions for both migrant and host 
communities 

 
Creating opportunity 
Working with migrant and host communities on creating opportunity for co-working 
and influencing programming and event planning and delivery. 
 
Explore 

• what support and needs they have to plan new events and activities that are 
realistic and sustainable 

• how they can create opportunities for individuals. 
 

• what skills individuals in the migrant communities have to offer 

• what groups or activities they can provide to arts organisations and venues,  

• barriers to this happening 
 
Stage 3: Project Culmination 
 
Event Planning 
- Working with arts groups and venues, as well as migrant communities in planning 
an event to showcase the findings of the project in a creative and dynamic format. A 
small exhibition and possible performances will take place at a final event.  

44



 
- Working with arts organisations, groups and individuals in the event promotion and 
planning to ensure engagement and involvement from both host and migrant 
communities. 
 
-  Working with organisations, groups and individuals on the next steps - how to 
respond to the findings and experiences of the project. Exploring with individuals and 
groups what additional services and support would be required, accessing existing or 
setting up services and support.  

45



 
Budget 
Consultant fee, including planning, research and face to face work  
5 days per month = £1000/ month x 6 months = £6000 
 
Consultant mileage  40p x 65 miles/ day = £26/ day = £130 / x 5days x 6 months = 
£780 
 
Transport Expenses for migrant workers, to attend meetings £400 
 
Documenting the project, Filmmaker fee, equipment, post production, £1,000 
 
Project promotion 
Fliers, web presence - in kind from Breckland Council and project partners 
Printing costs, £150 
 
Meetings planning, delivery & refreshments – community café or arts groups, £500 
 
Event Planning and Delivery, £1000  
To host a small exhibition, present findings, involve local performers and host a 
discussion with key partners / organisations and individuals.  
 
Contingencies, £300 
 
Total project costs = £9,350 
 
Options  
1. To allow an external consultant to carry out the scoping work over a 6 month 
period to the value of £9,350. 
 
2. Not to support the scoping work with the use of an external consultant.  

46



 
BRECKLAND PARTNERSHIP 

 
11 March 2010 

 
Report of Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer, Breckland Council 

 
PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING (PB) 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1.1 To update LSP Board members on the actions to date and the planned delivery of the 
Participatory Budgeting project and its evaluation. 
 

 

2.     Recommendations 
 

            It is recommended that the LSP Board: 
 
2.1.1 Note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report. 

2.1.2 A report is submitted to the LSP Board on 12th May detailing the projects that were 
awarded funding through the ‘Area Based’ Participatory Budgeting events. 
 

2.1.3 To invite the Breckland Youth Council members to present a report / presentation to 
the next Board meeting on 12th May regarding their Participatory Budgeting event. 

 

 

3.1     Background 

3.1.1 A successful application as previously disseminated and discussed was made to the 
Norfolk County Strategic Partnership for which funding of £25,000 plus a £1,250 
contribution to on costs was received to run Participatory Budgeting in Breckland. 

 
 3.1.2  The PB project consists of two key projects    
  

a). Breckland Youth Council Participatory Budgeting. Breckland’s Youth Council will be 
allocated £10,000 to run a participatory budgeting scheme specifically aimed at young people 
in the district.  The Youth Council will seek applications from school groups, youth clubs and 
other youth organisations and will fund projects identified by young people to address the 
issues most pertinent to them.  
  
b). Area-based Participatory Budgeting.  Based on Breckland Council’s and Norfolk 
Constabulary’s area based working arrangements, £5000 will be made available to each of 
the five Breckland ‘neighbourhoods’.  A Community Panel – made up of Elected Members and 
local community representatives – will be set-up and will directly involve local people in 
making decisions on the allocation of funds for their ‘neighbourhood’. 
 

3.1.3 An application was made to Breckland Full Council on 1st October for £10,000 to be 
allocated as part of the ‘Area Based Grant’ funding. This was kindly agreed and there is 
now £5,000 available in each of the ‘5’ market Towns and rural hinterland. 

3.2       Issues 

Youth Council  

3.2.1   The deadline for applications was the 12th January; short listing by the sub-group took 
place on 14th January, which involved completing a scoring matrix followed by a group 
discussion and then voting to confirm the projects to be shortlisted. 

 
3.2.2 A total of ‘21’ funding applications were received across the Breckland district with a 

total of £74,565 requested (an average bid of £3,550). 
 
3.2.3 The decision making / presentation evening where the shortlisted projects were 

presented for between 3-10 minutes in an open style, with questions from the Youth 
Council took place on the 28th January.  
 

Agenda Item 10

47



 
3.2.4 At this event the Youth Council sub-group made the decisions regarding the funding of 

projects and their decisions were announced to the applicants at the end of the 
evening. 

 
3.2.5 A broad range of projects received funding including a school, sports clubs, youth 

clubs and a scout / guide group (as shown in table below). 
 
3.2.6  

Ref. Project Title Location Amount 

        

003/10 Guides Thetford Girl Guiding  £    720.00  

005/10 Rugby Club Swaffham RUFC  £  1,000.00  

007/10 Football Club Y Friday, Dereham  £  1,151.00  

010/10 Boxing Club Attleborough  £  3,000.00  

012/10 Youth Club Y Friday, Dereham  £    566.00  

016/10 Energy Reach Rosemary Musker, Thetford  £     800.00  

017/10 3rd Thetford Scout Group Thetford  £     720.00  

019/10 Summer Play scheme Mencap, Dereham  £  2,043.00  

 
3.2.7 Evaluating the PB process and the projects will be carried out by the Youth Council 

and the applicants during the process and post the decision evening to ensure projects 
are delivering the proposed outcomes. 

 
Area Based  
 

   3.2.8   The Area Based Participatory Budgeting panels consist of community representatives 
including local ward members, business, faith, area partnerships, and a youth council 
member. (as attached) 

 
3.2.9 A panel has been set up in each of the ‘5’ areas to deliver their respective Participatory 

Budgeting events.  
 

3.2.10  Coordinator for each area has been agreed by the respective panel to act as the link 
person between the Partnership (LSP) Officer and the panel. 

 
3.2.11 Applications to the Participatory Budgeting in Breckland have begun to be submitted, 

so the project is reaching out to the communities the project is trying to access. 
 

3.2.12  The decision making events will take place across the district in March 2010. 
 

3.2.13 Evaluating the Participatory Budgeting process and the projects will be carried out by 
the panel members and the applicants during the process and post the decision 
evening to ensure projects are delivering the proposed outcomes. The outcomes of 
the projects funded should be completed at 6 and 12 Month intervals. 

 
3.3  Options 
 
3.3.1 To note [for information and planning purposes] the contents of this report 
 

3.4     Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

 
3.4.1 The funding awarded will provide the Breckland Partnership with a significant 

opportunity to consult the community on their priorities and allow them to take decision 
making at a local level.  

 
3.4.2 The decision making at a local level will be fed up to the Breckland Partnership (LSP 

Board) to ensure that common district wide issues are identified and addressed. 

 

 
48



Your Partnership Your Decision 
Application form - guidance notes 
What is Your Partnership, Your Decision?

Your Partnership Your Decision is a Participatory Budgeting (PB) pilot, being run by The Breckland 

Partnership (Local Strategic Partnership).  PB is defined as ‘Local people deciding how to allocate part of a 

public budget’. 

The focus of the PB Pilot in Breckland is to support the delivery of two strands: 

1. Breckland Youth Council Participatory Budgeting.

Breckland’s new Youth Council will be allocated £10,000 to run a participatory budgeting scheme 

 specifically aimed at young people in the district.  The Youth Council will seek applications from 

 school groups, youth clubs and other youth organisations and will fund projects identified by 

 young people to address the issues most pertinent to them. 

2. Area-based Participatory Budgeting.

Based on Breckland Council’s and the market town area based working arrangements,  £5000 will 

 be made available to each of the five Breckland ‘neighbourhoods’.  A Community Panel – made 

 up of Elected Members and local community representatives – will be set-up and will directly 

 involve local people in making decisions on the allocation of funds for their ‘neighbourhood’. 

Who can apply? 

This funding is available to organisations, partnerships, schools, charities, voluntary and community groups. 

How many applications can my organisation / partnership put in? 

As long as they meet the criteria for the local area where the project will be based, you can put in as many 

applications as you wish. 

Please Note: you can only submit applications in ‘one’ of the neighbourhood areas, applications will not be 

accepted if this is not followed. 

What can be funded? 

We can fund both capital and revenue costs.  But be aware that this is one off funding so you might need to 

think about how you can carry on your project once the funding ends.  We will not fund things that statutory 

organisations are doing already as part of their core services. 

Which year/s does the funding apply to?  When does my project have to finish by? 

Your project can run for as long as you like.  However, your project will need to be underway by May 2010.  If 

your project does run for more than one year you need to make sure that all the costs are covered in this bid. 

Timescale for applications: 

Please refer to your respective neighbourhood areas for the details. 

We expect … 

We expect your project to comply with your own organisation’s standards for project management.  This 

means, for example, that we expect you to have undertaken a risk assessment, equality impact assessment, 

environmental assessment and have all the proper financial checks in place. 

Shortlisting

The community representatives or the local community will be short listing projects (for details please refer to 

your respective neighbourhood area). We may contact you before this date if we need to ask you to clarify 

any questions.  We will invite shortlisted bids to our Decision events.

Decision Day 

The Decision Day/evening details will be provided to all the short listed applicants. 

However, to give you some notice it is likely that … 

49



 Shortlisted organisations will be able to involve an advocate, champion or people who use their 

 service in their presentations 

 We will have to restrict the number of people presenting for each presentation to a maximum of 5 

 Shortlisted bidders may be asked to prepare a display/poster about their project in advance of the 

 day and these posters may be displayed for residents to have a look at when they arrive at the 

 event. 

Other information for successful projects 

If we give you a grant you will have to keep to our terms and conditions.  You will also have to comply with 

any relevant legislation affecting the way you carry out your project.   

If you get a grant you must only use it for the project you set out in the application form.  You cannot give the 

grant or anything purchased with it to any other organisation or individual.  When your project is finished you 

will need to complete a report.  We will give you a template for this. 

The community representatives may like to visit successful projects as part of their evaluation process.  

Please be prepared for two possible visits – one at the start of your project and another during your project so 

we can see it in action. 

We will give you guidance on using ‘The Breckland Partnership’ and the ‘Your Partnership, Your Decision’ 

logo.  When you publicise or talk about your project we want you to use the logo so that people know that the 

funding came from our project. 

If we want more information 

As part of our shortlisting we may contact you for more information about your project. 

General hints about filling in the form 

 Please use plain English and do not use acronyms. 

 You need to make your project understandable for the members of the public on the steering group. 

Help with specific questions 

Part 2 – The Project 

How will your project meet the priorities in your area? 

Refer to the priorities for the area in which you are applying and make reference to them on how your project 

will allow for the project to be considered for funding. The local priorities have been decided upon using 

community representatives acting as the steering group in their locality.  

Describe your project or the activities that will take place if you receive funding? 

Use this space to give us a description of your project and what it contributes to the local area.  Your answer 

is important as it will let us see how and what your project is intending to deliver. 

Where do most of the recipients live? 

Provide information on where it is anticipated that the participants for the project will live, include details if the 

project is on a border and it is anticipated that there will be cross boundary or district benefactors. 

How will this project help the local community in Breckland? 

Tell us how your project/activity encourages the local community to become involved or how it will benefit 

them? The steering group is keen that projects they fund make a real difference to people’s lives in Breckland 

and beyond.  Please use this space to say what outcomes your project will have. 

How many people do you expect will directly benefit from your project? 

An estimate is fine if you cannot be exact but please give a figure. 

Part 3 – Further Information 

When will the project take place? 

Your project can run for as long as you like. However, your project will need to be underway by May 2010. 

50



How will you be able to tell if your project works?  How will you measure the success of the project? 

Tell us what would count as success for your project.  If you have any measures you will be using you can 

include these here.  However, please write any measures in a way that is easy for us to understand. 

Does your project involve any other organisations / partnerships?  If yes, please list them here. 

We are keen to see organisations in Breckland & Norfolk working together.  If your project is from a 

partnership or shows two or more organisations working together we are more likely to fund it. 

How will you ensure the sustainability of your project? 

We are keen to see projects that will be able to carry on post the funding and become self-sustaining by 

generating income or forming a partnership with another group or partner for example. 

What, if anything is different about your project or the proposed way of working? 

We are keen to fund projects that take a new approach to tackling the difficult issues we have identified as 

our priorities.  This is your chance to tell us what is innovative or different about your project. 

Part 4 - Funding 

How will you spend the grant? 

Please give as much detail as you can, including, where appropriate, hourly rates for work and services.  

Give the total cost for your project and put how much you want from us.  The total requested must be under 

£5,000.

We may ask for more information about this. Please refer to your local area for further guidance. 

If the full funding was not available would you be able to scale your project down? 

After funding, for example, the first four or five projects we may get to the stage on the decision day where we 

don’t have enough money left to fund the full cost of the next project on the list.  We would therefore like to 

know if there is a way we could support your project without giving you the full amount that you have asked 

for.  If you think we could then please give your suggestion here. 

Part 5 – Policy and Declaration 

All projects need to meet their own organisations or partnership’s policies.  Please tick to confirm. 

We expect your project to comply with your own organisation’s standards for project management.  This 

means, for example, that we expect you to have undertaken a risk assessment, equality impact assessment, 

environmental assessment and have all the proper financial checks in place.   

Good luck with your application!  

If you want more information 

If you have any questions not answered by this guidance please contact your local area co-ordinator as 

shown on the back page of the application form. 

Or alternatively contact: 

Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer 

Email: mark.fretwell@breckland.gov.uk   Tel: 01362 656 231  

Local areas 
Submission
Deadlines

Funding amounts Shortlisting
Decision
Date

Attleborough 8 March 2010 Maximum £1000 10
th
 March 31

st
 March

Dereham 8 March 2010 Bids up to £500
are most likely to be successful, however larger 
bids will  also be considered

W/C 8
th
 March TBC

Swaffham 8 March 2010 Up to £500, however larger bids will also be 
considered

W/C 8
th
 March

Review 
applications

TBC

Thetford 8 March 2010 Guidance £250 - £500 Exceptionally £1,000 10
th
 March 27

th
 March

Watton 12 March 2010 Guidance smaller bids up to £500
are most likely to be successful, however larger 
bids will also be considered

16
th
 March 24

th
 March

51



    Dereham Area 

    Swaffham Area 

    Watton Area 

    Thetford Area 

    Attleborough Area 

Map showing operational market town areas in Breckland 

52



 Your Partnership Your Decision
 The Breckland Partnership 
 - working together for a brighter future 

Participatory Budgeting

Participatory Budgeting ‘Your Partnership Your Decision’ a participatory 

budgeting programme organised by The Breckland Partnership (Local 

Strategic Partnership). The Breckland Partnership was successful in its £25,000 

bid to the Norfolk County Strategic Partnership to run a Participatory 

Budgeting project that will take place across the Breckland district. 

The Breckland Partnership has allocated £5,000 in each market town and 

rural hinterland to run a participatory budgeting project aimed at local 

priorities in the district. The community representatives co-ordinating the 

participatory budgeting are seeking applications from a wide range of 

groups within Breckland. 

Participatory Budgeting (PB) is defined as ‘Local people deciding how to 

allocate part of a public budget’. It is a flexible process, which has been 

implemented in varying forms across areas of all sizes. It works to enhance 

participation in local democracy whilst improving community cohesion and 

ensuring the delivery of cost-effective local services. 

The PB projects that the Breckland Partnership are delivering aim to 

demonstrate the following: 

The project involves local people and elected members. 

That it is local people who decide how the funding pot is allocated. 

Projects and activities that are funded through the Participatory 

 Budgeting project are based on local priorities and sound evidence of 

 need. 

‘Note’: Please refer to the guidance notes before completing your application 

to check which area you will be applying to and that your project fits the 

criteria in your local area. 

53



Funding is available for local projects (Total funding available for local area is £5,000) 

Please email or post this application form to your local co-ordinator (see back page for details) 

Please refer to the guidance notes for your local submission deadline. 

Applications will not be accepted after the local deadline. 

Part 1 - Applicant 

Name of organisation / partnership:  ____________________________________________________       

Name of main contact (title / name / surname): ____________________________________________  

Position: __________________________________________________________________________  

Address:  _________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Contact Tel:___________________________________  

Mobile: ______________________________________  

Email: _______________________________________  

Your project MUST meet the local priority in your local area as set out below:  

Attleborough Bringing People Together 

Dereham Bringing Communities Together 

 Creating a Cleaner, Greener Community 

 Bringing Businesses Together 

Swaffham Supporting Local Community Projects 

Thetford Community Building Projects 

Watton Bringing Communities Together 

 Bringing Businesses Together, 

 Creating a Cleaner, Greener Community 

If you are uncertain which area your project falls under please refer to the map included in the 

guidance notes or visit the Breckland Council website: www.breckand.gov.uk 

Note: Please complete the form in plain English, without using any acronyms. 

Your Partnership, 

Your Decision 
Participatory Budgeting

54



Part 2 - The project 

What is the name of your project? ______________________________________________________  

How will your project meet the priorities in your local area? (refer to guidance notes) 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Describe your project or the activities that will take place if you receive funding?   

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Where do most of the recipients live? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

How will this project help the local community in Breckland? Please tell us how your project/activity 
encourages the local community to become involved or how it will benefit them? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

How many people do you expect will directly benefit from this project? _________________________  

Please indicate below if you or any of the local community benefiting from this funding are from any of these 
groups. Please tick all that apply. 

 in care/leaving care    not in education, employment or training  black, Asian and minority ethnic 

 learning difficulties    physical disabilities    travellers    living in rural area 

 refugees or asylum seekers  English as a second language    young parents  young carers 

 none of the above 
55



Part 3 - Further details 

Start Date:_________________ End Date:___________________  

How will you be able to tell if your project works? How will you measure the success of your project? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Does your project involve any other organisations/partnerships? If yes, please list them here 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

How will you ensure the sustainability of your project? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

What if anything is different about your project or the proposed way of working? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

56



Part 4 - Funding 

Please tell us if you are seeking funding from other sources towards developing your project. (Note 
applications will not be penalised for not demonstrating match funding in the application). 

Please detail any local fundraising you may have done and any contributions you may have secured from 
other local organisations, for example, your local Town or Parish Council.  Copies of offer letters from other 
funders and other financial contributions may be required to confirm the details.  

How will you spend the grant? 

Who will be responsible for monitoring the finances of the project? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Do you have a bank account for the group/project? (you must have a bank account, another 
organisation, group, Parish Council can accept the funding on your behalf) 

 Yes  No 

If the full funding was not available would you be able to scale your project down? 

 Yes  No 

If yes, How would this be achieved and what would your next steps be? 

_________________________________________________________________________________  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Please give a breakdown of costs with supporting quotes: Amount

Total cost of project £

Name of Funder or method of fundraising
Amount
requested
(£)

% of total
Funding
confirmed:
Please  or 

Outcome
decision: date 
expected

        

        

        

Total:         

57



Part 5 - Policy and Declaration  

If the project involves working with young people 

Do you have a Child Protection Policy for your organisation? (please tick relevant box below) 

 Yes  No 

If yes, please send a copy of the policy with this application form. 

We need your support worker to confirm that that all staff and volunteers have an up-to-date CRB 
check.

 Yes  No 

All projects need to meet their own organisations or partnership policies. 

Please tick box to confirm 

If you are short-listed you must be able to make a presentation on the day/evening as shown in the 
guidance notes for your local area (further details will be provided to the short-listed applicants) 

Are you able to attend this? 

 Yes  No 

This form has been completed by: 

Signed: ___________________________________________________________________________  

Whoever signs this declaration and takes overall responsibility for this funding must be over 18 
years of age or over. 

The Breckland Partnership has the right to decline an application and or claims if not satisfied with 
evidence or policy declaration.

If you require guidance or you have any questions regarding the application please contact 

your area co-ordinator as listed below: 

Or alternatively contact Mark Fretwell, Partnership (LSP) Officer 

email: mark.fretwell@breckland.gov.uk 

Telephone: 01362 656 231 

Attleborough 01953 452865 rob@christcommunitychurch.co.uk 

Dereham
01603 880557 
07540 973229 

gordon.bambridge@breckland.gov.uk 

Swaffham 
01760 722800 
07810 773601 

dennis@iceni.info

Thetford 01842 753132 robert.kybird@gmail.com 

Watton 01953 880202 jan@wayland.org.uk 

 Telephone Email Name

Rob Tervet 

Gordon Bambridge 

Dennis Tallon 

Robert Kybird 

Jan Godfrey 

58



We have £25,000 to give 
away across Breckland!
(£5,000 for each local area)

If you need money for a project in 

your local area, contact your local 

co-ordinator (see www.breckland.gov.uk for 

contact details) 

Don’t delay! 
Your application needs to be in shortly! 

59


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 NHS Norfolk 5 Year Strategy
	8 Future Jobs Fund (FJF)
	FJF - Job Stencil Guidance
	FJF - Job Stencil

	9 Migration Impacts Funding (MIF)
	MIF Arts - Scoping Proposal

	10 Participatory Budgeting (PB)
	PB Area Based - guidance notes final
	PB Area Based - Application Form final
	PB Area Based - Poster final


